1950

Glen Froyd and M. F. Burgess v. Cedar City Corporation et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal taken by the plaintiffs from a judgment of "no cause of action" rendered in favor of the defendants by the District Court of Iron County, Utah, Hon. Will L. Hoyt, Judge.

The amended complaint (Rec. 9) and the answer (Rec. 20) set forth the respective contentions of the

parties, and the prayer of the amended complaint (Rec. 17) specifically states the relief sought by the plaintiffs. Briefly stated as to its effect, the action was commenced by resident taxpayers of Cedar City to prevent the defendants, Cedar City Corporation and its mayor and councilmen on behalf of Cedar City Corporation from purchasing a minority stock interest in the Southern Utah Power Company, a public utility; to prevent Cedar City Corporation from becoming a member of the Southwest Utah Power Federation; to prevent the City from proceeding under various contracts and transactions in connection with such purchase and membership; and to restrain the issuance of revenue bonds by the City in furtherance of the consummation of those transactions.

The case was submitted to the trial court upon various exhibits introduced by all parties and upon an agreed statement of fact. No oral testimony was introduced.

We believe the case will be more readily understood if the facts are first fully stated.

For brevity, Cedar City Corporation will be referred to as the "City" and will be treated as the sole defendant, since the mayor and councilmen are joined only in their official capacity; The Southwest Utah Power Federation will be referred to as the "Federation"; the Southern Utah Power Company will be referred to as the "Power Company" and the Rural Electrification Administration will be referred to as the "R. E. A."

FACTS OF THE CASE

The Southern Utah Power Company is a public utility which for many years last past has furnished, and now furnishes, Cedar City and its inhabitants with electrical energy and power for residential, domestic, business and other purposes. The Power Company owns and operates a distribution system within the City consisting of transmission lines, poles, meters and other necessary facilities and properties, and in addition supplies electrical energy to users of power in the Parowan Valley, the Towns of Summit, Enoch and Kanarraville and the Beryl Valley farming district, to users of power in Washington County, including Enterprise, Zions Canyon, Rockville, Hurricane, LaVerkin, Washington, Central, Gunlock, Veyo, Ivins, Santa Clara, Toquerville, Springdale, Pintura, New Harmony and rural communities such as Anderson's Ranch, Leeds and Harrisburg, and their adjacent territories, and to users in Kane County, including Kanab and rural areas. In so doing the Power Company has and does now maintain transmission lines to the points at or near where such users in Iron and Washington Counties are located, and in Kane County has and does now maintain a diesel unit to serve the City of Kanab; and also in so doing said Power Company has directly dealt with and does now deal directly with such users of power; such power users purchasing and using electrical power for household, domestic, business, indus-

trial and irrigation pumping purposes. In like manner the Power Company, under exchange agreements with the Cities of Parowan and St. George, furnishes stand-by or break-down service for these communities, and furnishes "firm" power to the City of Parowan when in the winter months the City of Parowan does not have sufficient water to generate power for its needs through its own municipal hydro-electric plant. (Finding No. 9, Rec. 105).

The interconnected generating system of the Power Company, exclusive of its isolated Kanab plant, consists of a diesel plant within the corporate limits of Cedar City, Utah, and a steam generating plant approximately two miles from Cedar City in Cedar Canyon, and four hydro-electric plants, one being at LaVerkin, Washington County, Utah, and the other three on the Santa Clara Creek in the vicinity of the towns of Veyo and Gunlock in Washington County, Utah. (Finding No. 10, Rec. 106).

The above described generating plants of the Power Company are connected with a high voltage transmission line which forms a loop throughout most of the territory served, the loop beginning at Cedar City, Utah, and running thence west to the Escalante Valley and Enterprise in Washington County, Utah; thence south into Washington County and to the three hydro-electric plants on the Santa Clara Creek; thence to Santa Clara, through St. George, Washington County, and on to Hurricane

and LaVerkin in Washington County, connecting with the hydro-electric plant at LaVerkin; thence running north through Toquerville, Kanarraville and back to Cedar City, Utah, with branch lines running off said main transmission line to serve various customers and towns. (Finding No. 11, Rec. 106).

The steam plant has a maximum capacity of 3,100 kilowatts and a normal operating capacity of 2,850 kilowatts; the diesel plant has a maximum or "peaking" capacity of 4,150 kilowatts and a normal operating capacity of 3,950 kilowatts and the "peaking" capacity of the said steam generating plant and the diesel plant is an aggregate of 7,250 kilowatts, and a normal operating capacity of 6,800 kilowatts; the maximum or "peaking" capacity of the said hydro-electric plants in the aggregate during the winter or high period is 2,400 kilowatts and the normal operating capacity is 2,200 kilowatts, and the maximum or "peaking" capacity of said hydro-electric plants in the aggregate during the summer or low period is 1,400 kilowatts, and the normal capacity is 1,250 kilowatts. Cedar City Corporation the year round uses 32% of the total production of the aggregate developed by said Southern Utah Power Company; none of the figures in this paragraph include the Kanab system. (Finding No. 12, Rec. 106-7).

On February 16, 1950, the trustee of the Washington Gas and Electric Company, which said company owns all

of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Southern Utah Power Company, excepting some directors' qualifying shares, entered into a certain "Sales Agreement" (Ex. "A" of Def. answer, Rec. 27-35) whereunder he agreed to sell and the Federation and the City agreed to buy all of the outstanding common stock of the Power Company in the following proportions:

City	11,305 shares
Federation	51,605 shares

The total purchase price for all of said stock was fixed at \$550,000.00, of which the City's share was fixed at \$98,835.00 and the Federation's share was fixed at \$451,165.00.

The proportion of stock and purchase price is respectively 17.97% and 82.03%.

In addition to the purchase price there is to be considered the outstanding bonds and preferred stock of the Power Company which will require a very large sum to retire, and which the trustee is not required to retire from the purchase price stated. The City's share of the purchase price, including retirement of bonds and other expenses, is \$375,000.00 or a little less.

On September 23, 1949, the Federation and the City entered into a certain agreement denominated by them a "Dissolution Agreement" (Ex. "B" of Def. answer, Rec. 36-40) under which they agreed to dissolve the

Southern Utah Power Company. In such dissolution the City is to receive all distribution lines and facilities within the city limits, and the Federation is to receive all generating and transmission facilities of the Power Company wherever located and particularly including those located in Cedar City, and is to receive all distribution lines and facilities located outside the City limits.

All costs and expenses relating to the dissolution of the Company, including all expenses of retiring the outstanding preferred stock and redeeming the outstanding bonds of the Power Company and discharging the other obligations and liabilities of said Power Company required to be satisfied before dissolution of the Power Company will be allocated 82.03% to the Federation and 17.97% to the City. (Ex. "B" of Def. answer, Rec. 37).

In order to raise the money to buy its 17.97% of the stock of the Power Company, and to retire the preferred stock and outstanding bonds of the Power Company, the City proposes to sell "Electric Revenue Bonds" in the sum of \$375,000.00. (Ex. "D" of Def. answer, Rec. 48-61).

The City has become a member of the Federation and has agreed to pay a membership fee of \$100.00. (Finding No. 7, Rec. 103). The Federation is organized as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Utah. Various pertinent provisions of the Articles

of Incorporation of the Federation (Pl. Exhibit 1, Rec. 139) are given as follows:

ARTICLE III. (Rec. 141).

"The object or objects and purpose or purposes for which the Federation is formed are:

"Section 1. To generate, manufacture, purchase, acquire and accumulate electric energy for its members and to transmit, distribute, furnish, sell and dispose of such electric energy to its members only and to construct, erect, purchase, lease as lessee and in any manner acquire, own, hold, maintain, operate, sell, dispose of, lease as lessor, exchange and mortgage, plants, buildings, works, machinery, supplies, apparatus, equipment and electric transmission and distribution lines or systems necessary, convenient or useful for carrying out and accomplishing any or all of the foregoing purposes.

"Section 2. To acquire, own, hold, use, exercise, and to the extent permitted by law, to sell, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate and in any manner dispose of franchises, rights, privileges, licenses, rights of way and easements necessary, useful or appropriate to accomplish any or all of the purposes of the incorporation.

"Section 3. To purchase, receive, lease as lessee, or in any other manner acquire, own, hold, maintain, use, convey, sell, lease as lessor, exchange, or mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose of any and all real and personal property or any interest therein necessary, useful or appropriate to enable the Federation to accomplish any or all of its purposes.

"Section 4. To borrow money, to make and

issue bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness, secured or unsecured, for moneys borrowed or in payment for property acquired, or for any of the other objects or purposes of the Federation; to secure the payment of such bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness by mortgage or mortgages, or deed or deeds of trust upon, or by the pledge of or other lien upon, any or all of the property, rights, privileges or permits of the Federation wheresoever situated, acquired or to be acquired."

ARTICLE V. (Rec. 142).

"There shall be a board of five directors of whom a majority shall form a quorum who, except as hereinafter provided with respect to the first board of directors, shall be elected annually by and from the members of the annual meeting of the members on the 1st Monday of March of each year, beginning with the year 1950, * * * *."

ARTICLE IX. (Rec. 144).

"Any persons, firm, association, corporation, or body politic or subdivision thereof may become a member in the corporation by:

"(A) Executing a written application for membership thereon;

"(B) Agreeing to purchase from the Federation electric energy as hereinafter specified;

"(C) Agreeing to comply with and be bound by the articles of incorporation and bylaws of the Federation and any rules and regulations adopted by the board of directors; and

"(D) Paying the membership fee hereinafter

specified; provided, however, that no applicant shall become a member unless and until he or it has been accepted for membership by the board of directors or the members. No member may hold more than one membership in the Federation, and no membership in the Federation shall be transferable."

ARTICLE IX, Section 2. (Rec. 145).

"MEMBERSHIP FEE. The membership fee shall be One Hundred (\$100.00) Dollars. The membership fee paid by or on behalf of an incorporator shall be applied to the membership fee of the organization he represents when it becomes a member."

ARTICLE IX, Section 3. (Rec. 145).

"PURCHASE OF ELECTRIC ENERGY. Unless otherwise specified by written agreement, each member shall terminate any contract which it may have for the purchase of energy from any other supplier when electric energy becomes available from the Federation or as soon thereafter as it may legally do so, and shall purchase from the Federation all electric energy used by the member. *Each member shall pay therefor monthly at rates or on a basis to be determined from time to time in accordance with the bylaws subject to contracts heretofore or hereafter entered into between the member and the Federation. It is expressly understood that amounts paid for electric energy in excess of the cost of service are furnished by members as capital and each member shall be credited with capital so furnished as provided in these bylaws. Each member shall pay to the Federation all such other amounts per month regardless of the amount of*

electric energy consumed, as shall be fixed by the board of directors from time to time. Each member shall also pay all amounts owed by such member to the Federation as and when the same shall become due and payable."

ARTICLE IX, Section 4. (Rec. 145).

"TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP: (a) A member may withdraw from membership upon compliance with such equitable terms and conditions as the board of directors may prescribe, provided, however, that no member shall be permitted to withdraw until he has met all his contractual obligations to the Federation. * * * *"

ARTICLE IX, Section 4 (b). Rec. 146.

"* * * * . Termination of membership in any manner shall not release a member or his estate from any debts due the Federation."

As a part of the entire transaction and scheme the City entered into a so-called "wholesale power agreement" (Ex. "C" of Def. answer, Rec. 41) whereunder the City agreed to purchase all its power from the Federation until December 31st, 1984, a period of thirty-five (35) years from the date of the contract, and with a provision, among others, as follows:

"The Board of Directors of the Seller at such intervals as it shall deem appropriate, but in any event not less frequently than once in each calendar year, shall review the rate schedule for electric power and energy furnished hereunder and under

similar agreemnts with other members of the Seller and, if necessary, shall revise such rate schedule so that the rates shall produce revenues which shall be sufficient, but only sufficient, with the revenues of the Seller from all other sources, to meet the cost of the operation and maintenance of the generating plant, transmission system and related facilities of the Seller, the cost of any energy purchased for resale hereunder by the Seller, pay taxes, *make payments on account of principal of and interest on all indebtedness of the Seller*, and to provide for the establishment and maintenance of reasonable reserves. * * * *” (Rec. 46-47).

The Federation presently has no funds excepting the membership fees specified in the Articles of Incorporation of said Federation but it does have an approved loan from the Rural Electrification Administration of the United States Government in the amount of \$3,750,000.00, the proceeds of which are to be used for the purchase of its proportionate share of the common stock of the Southern Utah Power Company and the retirement of bonds and obligations specified in the agreement marked Defendants’ Exhibit “B”, and the making of improvements and building of transmission lines, presently contemplated. This loan bears interest at two per cent per annum, and is retireable over a period of thirty-five years. Repayment of the loan with interest will of necessity be made by the Federation from the sale of power to its members and/or contributions and/or assessments from its members. (Finding No. 18, Rec. 109-110).

In connection with the approved loan of \$3,750,000.00 the Federation has already executed one mortgage note in the sum of \$2,300,000.00 (Def. Ex. "G", Rec. 211-212) and another mortgage note in the sum of \$1,450,000.00 (Def. Ex. "F", Rec. 209-210).

The Federation also has executed a mortgage to secure the payment of said notes, (Def. Ex. "H", Rec. 213-220), which said mortgage specifically provides that it is contemplated that notes additional to the two notes aggregating \$3,750,000.00 shall be executed from time to time, not exceeding \$20,000,000.00; and further that:

"The Mortgagor, subject to applicable laws and rules and orders of regulatory bodies, will charge for electric energy and other services furnished by it rates which shall be sufficient to pay and discharge all taxes, maintenance expense, cost of electric energy, and other operating expenses of its electric transmission and distribution system and electric generating facilities, if any, *and also to make all payments in respect of principal of and interest on the notes when and as the same shall become due*, and to provide and maintain a reasonable reserve for working capital of the Mortgagor." (Def. Ex. "H", Sect. 15, Rec. 217, reverse side of sheet).

The above mentioned paragraph from the mortgage says "subject to applicable laws and rules and orders of regulatory bodies" but there are no laws applicable and it was held in the case of *Garkane Power Co. v. Public Service Commission*, 100 Pac. (2d) 571, 98 Utah 466, that

an R. E. A. co-operative is not subject to the rules and regulations of the Public Service Commission; consequently there are no state or municipal regulations, limitations or restraints of any kind respecting the rates that may be charged.

“On retirement of the loan, ownership of the assets of the Federation will be held by and vested in the members proportionate to the power usage and payments thereon by said members over such period.” (Finding No. 18, Rec. 110).

The pleadings raise the direct issue as to the legal right and municipal authority of the City to enter into and consummate those transactions. The amended complaint expressly seeks a decree of court declaring the previous dealings and contracts of the said defendants to be illegal and void; declaring that the proposed membership of the defendant City in said Federation to be without lawful authority; declaring the execution of the said or any similar wholesale power purchase agreement to be without lawful authority; and praying that a temporary restraining order and temporary injunction be issued against the defendants and each of them enjoining and restraining them and each of them from continuing further with the proposed transactions as aforesaid and from executing any resolutions, agreements or commitments which shall tend in any way to consummate the said illegal and void acts; that this Court restrain the

issuance of the revenue bonds referred to in Exhibit "D" attached to the Answer, for the consummation of the transaction and/or transactions involved in this action; and that upon the final hearing said injunction be made perpetual; * * * *. (Rec. 17-18).

The trial court rendered a judgment "no cause for action" in favor of the defendants.

The sole question presented for review is whether or not the trial court erred in rendering such a judgment, all of which involves determining the further questions of whether or not the City had a legal right to enter into, and has a legal right to proceed with, the entire scheme of purchasing stock in the Southern Utah Power Company; and whether or not it can enter into the so-called wholesale power contract; become a member of the Federation; and issue its revenue bonds in payment of the stock in the Power Company and incidental expenses.

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED UPON BY APPELLANTS

Following are briefly set forth the points upon which the appellants rely for a reversal of the judgment "no cause for action" entered by the trial court:

- I. Cedar City, in purchasing a minority stock interest in the Southern Utah Power Company, and in becoming a minority member of the Southern Utah Power Company, vi-

olates Article VI, Section 31, Constitution of the State of Utah.

- II. Cedar City has exceeded its municipal authority and purposes in entering into the various transactions more specifically enumerated and discussed in the Statement of Facts of this brief.
- III. Cedar City has unlawfully delegated its legislative powers and functions in the many particulars specified later in this brief.
- IV. The financial obligations assumed by Cedar City under the various transactions involved violate Article XIV, Sections 3 and 4, Constitution of the State of Utah.

ARGUMENT

I.

CEDAR CITY, IN PURCHASING A MINORITY STOCK INTEREST IN THE SOUTHERN UTAH POWER COMPANY, AND IN BECOMING A MINORITY MEMBER OF THE SOUTHWEST UTAH POWER FEDERATION, VIOLATES ARTICLE VI, SECTION 31, CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF UTAH.

Appellants contend that Cedar City, in purchasing a minority stock interest in the Southern Utah Power Company, and in becoming a member of the Federation, considering the scheme and transactions as a whole, and in view of all the facts and circumstances, violates the terms and provisions of Article VI, Section 31, Constitution of the State of Utah, which we quote as follows:

“(LENDING PUBLIC CREDIT FORBIDDEN).

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