1950

Glen Froyd and M. F. Burgess v. Cedar City Corporation et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

I

CEDAR CITY, IN AGREEING TO PURCHASE A PORTION OF THE COMMON STOCK OF THE POWER COMPANY FOR THE PURPOSE OF PARTICIPATING IN THE DISSOLUTION AND ACQUISITION OF ITS ASSETS AND BECOMING A MEMBER OF THE FEDERATION HAS NOT VIOLATED THE CONSTITUTION FOR THE REASON THAT THE CITY IS DOING NOTHING IN AID OF ANOTHER CORPORATION OR INDIVIDUAL AND FOR THE FURTHER REASON THAT NO PUBLIC FUNDS OR CREDIT IS INVOLVED.

Specifically, the appellants contend that Article VI Section 31 of our Constitution and also Article XIV, Sections 3 and 4 will be violated by the consummation of the power plan proposed by the City. As pointed out in their brief and statement of facts, the city proposes to purchase 11,305 shares of the common stock of the power company, or 17.97% of the stock and the Federation proposes to purchase the remainder or 51,605 shares and amounting to 82.03%. Each of the two purchasers is also having to pay the same proportion of the obligations of the power company so that the total portion of the purchase price to be paid by the city amounts to approximately \$337,000. In order to raise this sum, Cedar City proposes to issue Electric Revenue Bonds in the amount of \$375,000.00. In other words, the first step in the pro-

posed scheme involves the purchase by the city of shares of stock in a corporation.

Article VI, Section 31 of our Constitution would appear at first reading to prohibit this and which we also quote:

“(LENDING PUBLIC CREDIT FORBIDDEN).

The Legislature shall not authorize the State, or any county, city, town, township, district or other political subdivision of the State *to lend its credit or subscribe to stock or bonds in aid of any railroad, telegraph or other private individual or corporate enterprise or undertaking.*”

It is obvious as the appellants state, this section can be divided into two parts, (a) It prohibits any city from subscribing stock in aid of any individual, corporate enterprise or undertaking and (b) from lending its public credit in aid of any such individual, corporation or undertaking. The city has no quarrel with the provisions of this section and indeed can see its wisdom, but the city strenuously contends that it has no application to the present case.

A majority of our states have similar constitutional provisions and the reason for them is very clearly stated in 152 A.L.R. 495, as follows:

“Early in the nineteenth century it seems to have been the general practice of states to encourage the building of railroads by permitting the state or subdivisions thereof to purchase stock in railroad corporations, to issue bonds or lend credit in aid of railroads, or to make outright donations to them. However, due to the large number of insolvencies of railroads, caused by fraud or economic conditions, states and subdivisions thereof found themselves

largely indebted and were themselves occasionally insolvent because of large investments in such enterprises. Therefore, a reversal of policy set in”.

It might be added that cities have in the past donated building sites for corporations and individuals and made many other monetary inducements to them. This was done by the expenditure of public funds raised primarily from taxation. This practice is so manifestly wrong as to leave no room to doubt the wisdom of such enactments to prohibit it. But the proposed purchase by the city of the capital stock of the power company most certainly does not come within this prohibition according to the general rule of law followed in the states where this question has arisen and particularly as held by two decisions of this Court interpreting Article VI, Section 31 of our Constitution.

In the first place, the purchase of this stock is only preliminary to the main purpose of the purchase — the acquisition of the physical properties of the power company after its dissolution by the City and the Federation. Surely the appellants could have no cause to complain if the city were to purchase the distribution system of the power company, which even the appellants concede it could legally do. But it seems that purchase of capital stock for the purpose of enabling the city to participate in the dissolution of the power company and the division of its assets afterwards is vastly more irregular and in fact is downright unconstitutional. It is obvious that the plan to purchase the stock is only for the purpose of dissolution of the power company because the two purchasers, the City and the Federation had agreed September 23, 1949 as to the dissolution of the power company and the division of its assets between them according to the terms of the Dissolution Agreement (Ex. “B” of Def. Ans., Rec. 36-40) but the actual agreements for the purchase of the stock, (Ex. “A” of Def. Ans. Rec. 27-35) was

not entered into until February 16, 1950. In other words, the City and the Federation had already agreed as to the dissolution and the division of the properties approximately five months before they even agreed to purchase the stock. Therefore, it is obvious that the purchase is only for the purpose of the dissolution of the power company and the acquisition of its assets — the destroying of the corporation so its property can be obtained. The majority rule in this country is that a purchase of corporate stock for the purpose of dissolution does not come within the constitutional provisions similar to our Constitution as above quoted. The following cases so hold:

Brode v. Philadelphia 230 Pa. 434, 79 A. 659.

State Ex Rel Johnson v. Consumers Public Power District, 10 N.W.2nd, 784.

People Ex Rel. Murphy v. Kelly, 76 N. Y. 475.

Cawood v. Coleman 294 Ky. 858, 172 S.W.2nd. 548.

Long v. Mayo, 271 Ky. 192, 111 S.W.2nd. 633.

Wheeler v. Philadelphia, 77 Pa. 338.

McGuire v. Cincinnati, 40 NE.2nd. 435.

Most of the above cases are cited in 152 A.L.R. 512 where an excellent discussion of the question involved is to be found. True, the court in the main case of the annotation, State Ex Rel. Johnson v. Consumers Public Power District, *supra*, which held that the Nebraska Constitution was not violated, used the language of a purchase of *all* of the stock of a corporation but it is obvious that the language was never intended to mean that unless all the stock was purchased, the agreement to purchase only a part was illegal. What the Court did mean was that the purchase of only part of the stock of the corporation, leaving it operating as a going concern with the government agency or subdivision being a stock-

holder was within the prohibition which is as it should be. But if the effect of the purchase is as in this case, to immediately and simultaneously dissolve the corporation and render it defunct, it would make no difference whether the municipality bought only part of the stock or all of it. In other words its co-purchaser is joining with the dissolution. The net result of the purchase would be the same whether the City purchased all of the stock or only part of it. Purchasing only part of the stock and leaving the corporation to operate could very well be "in aid" of the corporation but to purchase all for the purpose of conjointly dissolving it could not in the widest stretch of the imagination be deemed "in aid" of the corporation but the exact opposite.

The reason for the rule that purchasing of stock for the purpose of dissolution not being within the prohibition of our constitution is stated in the case of the State Ex Rel Johnson v. Consumers Public Power District, supra, as follows:

"Section 1, Article XI of our constitution was never intended to prohibit a purchase by a subdivision of the state of all the capital stock of a corporation solely for the purpose of lawfully acquiring the physical property of such corporation for a public use, constitutionally defined and lawfully authorized by the legislature."

Also the case of People ex. Rel. Murphy v. Kelly, supra, where the New York Legislature had passed an act allowing the cities of New York and Brooklyn to jointly buy the Brooklyn Bridge by the buying of the stock of the corporation owning the bridge, held,

"It was not the purpose of the act to make the City of New York a stockholder in the bridge company or to cause it to loan any money or credit to such com-

pany. It was the purpose of the act to extinguish the company and to vest all its property in the two cities for a public purpose. All the money they paid for stock or upon the debts of the company was simply a furtherance of the purpose, to vest the property of the bridge in the two cities and it was not to aid the company or to make the cities stock holders therein. The effect was to be the dissolution of the company and transfer of the property of the company."

It is submitted that this case is directly in point with the case at bar because neither of the purchasers purchased all of the stock but each only a part, but between the two of them, all was purchased and for the purpose of dividing and acquiring the physical property.

As pointed out above, the reason the courts hold that a purchase of corporate stock by a municipality for the purpose of dissolving the corporation and acquiring its assets does not violate constitutional prohibitions such as our own is because there is no "aid" to the corporation. It is not the bare purchase of the stock that is intended to be prevented but the giving of aid to the corporation by the expenditure of public funds.

There is another reason why the proposed purchase of this stock does not violate our constitution and which is one not found in any of the cases cited by the counsel for either the appellants or respondents, which is that public funds or credit are not involved in this case. The very heading of our constitutional provision above quoted "Lending of Public Credit Forbidden" shows clearly that it was intended that the funds or money or credit to be protected was public funds raised from taxation or other lawful means.

In other words, it is to safeguard the public treasury and public funds and to prevent the use of such funds

for such private purposes. As pointed out in 152 A.L.R. 512, *supra* a city could become insolvent or impoverished, its credit ruined and deprived of its ability to serve its citizens by unwise and costly financial ventures in aid of other individuals or corporations.

But the money to be spent by the City for its portion of the power company and consisting of the distribution system in Cedar City, and also for future cost of maintenance and operation would not be the type of funds intended by the constitutional restriction. They are not public funds in any sense of the word but are special funds which in no way affect the tax structure, the finance, credit or solvency of the City. A discussion of the "special fund" doctrine should not be necessary in this case. Needless to say, this court has adopted and affirmed the special fund doctrine in a long line of cases. See *Barnes vs. Lehi City*, 278 Pac. 878, *Fjeldsted vs. Ogden City*, 28 Pac. 2nd. 144, *Utah Power and Light Co. vs. Provo City*, 74 Pac. 2nd, 1191, *Utah Power and Light Co. vs. Ogden City*, 79 Pac. 2nd. 61. Briefly the doctrine as established by the above cited Utah cases and also by a majority of the States of our union is that where the money for the purchase or construction of an income producing utility or property comes from the sale of Revenue bonds, the payment of which and interest thereon, together with all cost of operation, come from the gross revenue received from the operation of the property or utility, the funds involved are not public funds within the meaning of our constitution and particularly Article XIV, sections 3 and 4 which limit the indebtedness of our cities, towns and counties. The right of a city or county to issue and sell such bonds does not even have to be submitted to an election by the people for the reason that a public debt is not being created. Furthermore, the cases of *Utah Power and Light Co. vs. Ogden City*, *supra* and *Utah Power and Light Co. vs. Provo City*, *supra* hold

that the large expenditure to construct electric light systems does not even have to be first noticed for bids from contractors because public funds are not being spent. Surely Article VI, Section 31 of our Constitution in prohibiting the expenditure of funds for stock in corporations or lending credit has reference to public funds from the public treasury raised by taxation or some other legal method. The Provo City case gives an exhaustive treatment of the special fund doctrine and definitely shows that the expenditure of special funds has nothing to do with taxes, credit or financial structure of a city.

Nothing more will be said regarding the special fund doctrine other than to state that so far as known to the writer, no case cited by counsel for the appellants which may have held that the particular spending or lending under consideration was in violation of the constitutional provision similar to ours, was a case where only special funds were involved. In all the cases cited by counsel, the funds were definitely public funds or general credit of the political subdivision and coming from taxes or some other source of general income and were not in the category of special funds as are involved in this case and as defined in the Provo City case.

Therefore, if the funds involved are not the type of funds contemplated by our constitutional provisions above quoted, then the whole prohibition must fall as it has no application.

In fact it might be pointed out that the expenditure of the funds involved could in no way adversely affect the city's credit. The only conceivable way it could have anything to do with the financial structure of the city would be for the better. Of course the success of the proposed venture is not assured but surely the City expects to make some profit from such an operation which would

definitely improve the City's financial condition or enable the City to lower its tax rate because of the added money.

As above pointed out, Article VI, Section 31 of our Constitution prohibits the lending of credit of the City as well as purchasing stock in a corporation and appellants claim that the credit of Cedar City is being lent to the Federation and here we have a slightly different proposition, but in any event there is no lending of credit by the City. In the first place no public credit of the City is involved or in any way jeopardized for the reason that only special funds are involved and the argument above presented regarding the use of such funds for the purchase of the capital stock would be applicable to the lending of credit.

True, the Federation has four other members besides the City covering all of the Southern counties of the State and to a minor degree in northern Arizona. The generating plants and transmission lines of the Federation will be scattered and Cedar City is only the hub, so to speak. Under the proposed plan, Cedar City would own its distribution system outright, and the Federation would have no claim to or lien upon it in any way. Likewise the holders of the Electric Revenue Bonds, when they are issued, would have no claim upon the distribution system. The City, however, would own no generating facilities. It has heretofore decided it would be better to buy its needs in power from a non-profit co-operative, thus escaping the costs and hazards incident to generation. To do this the City has become a member of the Federation and has signed a contract (Ex. "C" of Def. Ans. Rec. 44) to purchase all power for a period of 35 years at a price of cost to produce the power. Since the Federation is a non-profit co-operative, it can make no profit but exists and operates solely for the benefit of its

members. True, the Federation has no money, but does have an approved loan from the R.E.A. for \$3,750,000.00 with which to purchase its portion of the system of the power company and to make certain improvements and extensions to the system. The Federation and only the Federation has executed notes and mortgages on this loan and at no place is the city obligated to pay any part of it. The only obligation which the City has is to purchase all of its power from the Federation. The money received from the City will of course be used by the Federation to pay its operating expenses and also to pay off the R. E. A. loan and interest. Surely because the City will be paying money to the Federation for kilowatts of power, which money will then in turn be paid to the R.E.A. on the loan cannot be termed an obligation of the City to pay off the loan. To repeat, the only sums which the City would be obligated to pay would be for power delivered according to the terms of the wholesale power contract, (Ex. "C" of Def. Ans. Rec. 44). If this were determined to be a lending of credit or the assumption of a debt unlawfully, then every contract which a city or other governmental subdivision makes involving the payment to another for service or materials rendered or delivered to the City is likewise illegal because the money so paid would be used by the payee to either pay off its own obligations or would go to expenses or profit.

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